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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 31t Annual General Meeting of Garnet International Limited will be held on
Saturday, 6% day of July at 11.00 A.M at 901, Raheja Chambers, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2013 and
Balance Sheet as on that date along with the Reports of Directors and Aqditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

3. Ta appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deven Mehta who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s) the following as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309, and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 1956 and read with Schedule XIII of the said Act (inciuding any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and as approved by Board of Directors, approval of Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Suresh Gaggar as Managing Director of the
Company for a period of three (3) years commencing from 6th July, 2013 and on the terms and conditions as set
out in-the Agreement to be entered into between the Company and Mr. Suresh Gaggar, Managing Director, the
draff whereof is placed before this meeting and for the purpose of identification, is initialed by the Chairman hereof,
which agreement is hereby specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms

and conditions of the said agreement as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to take all necessary
steps for the aforesaid purpose and matters incidental thereto,”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s) the following as a special resolution:

“RESQLVED THAT M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors
of the Company to fill in casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. R.S. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants and that the said new Statutory Auditors of the Company shall hold office from the date of this
meeting till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration as may be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

By order of the Board

Place: Mumbai ' SURESH GAGGAR
Dated: 29" May 2013 DIRECTOR
NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. Proxies, if any, in order to be effective must be received at the Company's Registered Office not later than 48
hours {forty eight hours) before the time fixed for holding the meeting.

3 The Register of Memberygnd the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 5% July
2013 to Saturday, 6" july 2013 {(both days inclusive).

4, Additional information pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges in respect of

Directars appointed/re-appointed is appearing in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual
Report.

5. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing
paperless compliance by the companies and has issued Circulars statmg that service of notice/document
including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members.

To support this green initiative of the government, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so
far are reguested to register their e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository
through their concerned Depository Participants., Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to
register their e-mail addresses with the Registrar of the Company.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Item No. 4

Subject to necessary approval by the Members in the Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors of the
Company in its Meeting held en 29™ May, 2013, have recommended for the appointment of Mr. Suresh Gaggar as
Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from July 6,, 2013 to July 5, 2016.

Mr. Suresh Gaggar aged 50 years, Is Post Graduate (M.Com.}. He is very dynamic person having vast experience,
in-depth knowledge and strong understanding of various intricacies of the Securities Market and Financial Services.
He has exhaustive and rich experience of securities business of more than 21 years and has an extensive expertise
in analyzing and identifying potential investment opportunities in the Indian equity market. He is Director of the
company since 4th March 1996,

The Board of Directors of the Company has subject to provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309, and other applicable
provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Schedule Xl of the said Act, appointed Mr. Suresh Gaggar

as Managing Director for a period of three years with effect from July 6, 2013, an'the remuneration terms and broad
terms and conditions detailed hereunder:;

Salary:-Nil .
Mr. Suresh Gaggar shall not be subject to retirement by rotation during his tenure as Managing Director

A copy of the draft agreement referred to in the rasolution is available for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on any working day excluding public holidays and Sundays, between 11.00 AM.
0 1.00°P.M. up to and including th_e date of Annual General Meeting.

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, Ordinary Resoclution as per the terms set
out in ltem No 4 of the accompanying Notice is being placed before the members in the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company except Mr. Suresh Gaggar and Mr. Ramakant Gaggar are, in any way,
concerned or interested in the resolution.

The Directors recommend the resolution for approval of members.

ftem No. 5

The Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. R.5. Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants have tendered their
resignation from the office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company with effect from 29t May 2013 due to their
other pre-occupations. Your Company proposes to appoint M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to fill in the casual vacancy caused by resignation tendered by M/s. R.S. Agrawal &
Associates, Chartered Accountants. The proposed new auditors M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered Accountants have
given a certificate to the effect that their appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the provisions of Section
224 of the Companies Act, 1956. :

The Resignation letter received from Mjs. RS. Agrawal, Chartered Accountants together with the certificate
received from M/s. MVK Associates, Chartered Accoyptants in terms of Section 224 (1-B) of the Companies Act,
1956, is available for inception of the members of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company between
11:00 AM and 2:00 PM on all working days tilt the date of the Annual General Meeting.

" None of the Directors of the Company is interested or concerned in this resolution.

REQUEST TO MEMBERS

1. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.

2. Members who have multiple folios in identical names in the same order are requested to send all the Share
Certificates to the Regiitra,; of the Company.




DIRECTOR'S REPORT

The Members .
The Directors of Garnet International Limited take pleasure in presenting the Annual Report on the
operations of the company, together with the audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Financial Results

Amount in T
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31* March 2013 31 March 2012
Total Income 25618409.92 257653792.11
Profit/(LLoss) before Depreciation and Tax 1512408.54 7032305.46
Less: Depreciation 572916.17 572154,31
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 939492.37 6460151.15
Less: Provision for Tax 2749984.00 160864.00
Net Profit /(1.oss) after Tax 664498.37 6299287.15

Year under review

During the year under review, your Company registered a total income of ¥ 25618409.92 as against
< 257653792.11 in the previous year. Profit before depreciation and tax stood at ¥ 1512408.54 as

against Profit of T 7032305.46 in the previous year. Your company reported net profit of ¥
664498.37.

Dividend ;
Your Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2013,

Managernent’s Discussion and Analysis Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, which also deals with the
opportunities, challenges and the future outlook for the Company as stipulated under Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange in India is presented in a separate section forming
part of the Annual Report.

Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors to the best of their
knowledge and belief confirm that:

+ the applicable standards have been followed in the preparation of the annual accounts,

¢ the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2013 and the profit of the company for the
year ended on that date.

+ the Directors have taken appropriate and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

o the Directors have prepared the attached Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31,
2013 on a going concern basis. ’

Subsidiary Company

Your Company has a subsidiary company namely Sukartik Clothing Private Limited with a stake of
50.21%. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and toss and other statements of the Subsidiary
Company are not being attached with the Annual Report of the Company. The Company will make
available the Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Company and the related detailed information to
any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same. The Annual Accounts of
the Subsidiary Company will also be kept open for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company .The consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial
results of its Subsidiary.

Corporaie Governarnce

Your Company is commited to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance.Your
Directors adhere to the requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of india,
Corporate Governance practice and have implemented all the prescribed stipulations.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ramakant Gaggar and Mr. Sharad Rathi, Directors of the
Company, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends
their re-appointment.

Fixed Deposits

During the year under review, the company had neither accepted nor renewed any deposit from
public within the meaning of Section 58 A of the Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors

M/s. R.S. Agrawal & Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, They have expressed their desire not to seek re-appointment. The Directors wish
to put on record their appreciation for the services rendered by them.

The Company has received a notice from a member proposing the appointment of M/s. MVK
Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual Generai
Meeting. They have confirmed their eligibility and have given their consent for the proposed
appointment. Members are requested to appoint Auditors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Commentis on Auditors’ Report

The company is in the process of taking remedial measures on the observations made by the
Auditors in their Report.

Conservation of Energy, Research & Development, Technology absorption, Foreign exchange Earnings
and Outgo:

(A) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption
Censidering the Company’s business activities, the Directors have nothing to state in connection
with Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption.

(B} Foreign Exchange Earnings And Qutgo

During the year under review, the Company did not have any Foreign Exchange Earnings or
Qutgo.
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Particulars as per section 217(2A) of Companies Act, 1956

Statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, is not given as none of the employees of the Company is covered under the provisions of
the said section.

Acknowledgements

The Directors greatly value the support and co-operation received during the year from the Financial
Institution, the Company's Bankers, Statutory Authorities and all organizations connected with its
business. The Directors also take pleasure in commending the valuable contributions made by the
Company's employees at all levels during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Mumbai Suresh Gaggar Ramakant Gaggar
Date: 27" May 2013 Director Director

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



Report on Corporate Governance
(As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchange)

1.

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance lays strong emphasis on
transparency, accountability and integrity. Corporate Governance assumes a great deal
of importance in the business life of the Company through adoption of best governance
practices and its adherence in the true spirit at all times. The Company believes that
proper Corporate Governance facilitates effective management and control of business.
The Company’s goal is to find creative and productive ways of delighting its
stakeholders, while fulfilling the role of a responsible corporate representatjve committed

On the company’s website www.garnetint.com information useful to investors are
available. The code of conduct is available at registered office of the company for
inspection of shareholders.

Board of Directors

a) Composition of the Board
The Board, during the year, comprised of 5 Directors all of them are Non-
Executive Directors. 2 out of them are independent Directors. The company does
not have chairman. All the Directors are liable to retire by rotation.
The composition of the Board and other relevant detaiis relating to Directors are

given below:
N f th Cat ; N f Oth No. of Other Committee
ame o e . . ategory o 0. O er Memberships #
. Designation L N A - p
Director Directorship |Directorships Chairman Member
Mr. Suresh Director Promoter, Non- 0 Nil Nit
Gaggar Executive;
Non Independent
Mr. Ramakant Director Promoter; Non- 1 Nil Nil
Gaggar Executive;
Non-Independent
Mr. Deven Director Promoter; Non- 1 Nit Nil
Mehta Executive;
Non-Tndependent
Mr. Dinesh Director Non-Executive; 8 Nil Nit
Nandwana Independent
Mr. Sharad Director Non-Executive; 0 Nil  + Mil
Rathi Independent

* Directorships in Private and Foreign Companies, if any, are excluded.

# Memberships of only Audit Committee, Shareholders/investors’ Grievance
Committee and Remuneration Committee have been considered.

b) Reappointment of Directors:
Resume of the Directors whose appointment/re-appointment is proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting is as under:

i) Dinesh Nandwana

Mr. Dinesh Nandwana is a member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
having over 25 vyears of experience of administration. He is Chairman of
Vakrangee Softwares Limited, a company pioneer in the €-governance domain
and has one of the largest capacities in delivering large scale document and print
Management solutions.

Directorships held by Mr. Dinesh Nandwana in other companies are as under:

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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Name of the Company

Vakrangee Softwares Limited
Vakrangee IT Soiutions Limited
Vakrangee Technoiogies Limited
Vakrangee Infraprojects Limited ;
Omnis Infra-Power Limited

Omnis Edu-Health Limited

Vakrangee Lacteus and Hortus Limited
Vakrangee Finserve Limited
Vakrangee Holdings Pvt Ltd

10. NID Biotech Pvt Ltd

11, eDoc Vision Infotech Pvt Ltd

12. Vakrangee Capital Pvt Ltd

13. MDN Share & Stock Brokers Pvt Ltd
14, MDN Multi Commodities Pvt Ltd

15. Vakrangee Energy Pvt Ltd

0[N L ol o

Mr. Dinesh Nandwana does not hold any Chairmanship/Membership in
committees of other companies.

Mr. Sharad Rathi does not have any equity shares in the Company as on 31%
March 2013.

i) Mr. Deven Mehta

Mr. Deven Mehta has an in-depth knowledge of Capital Market. He has sound
experience in investment and fund management and management consultancy,
derivatives, fund mobilization, working capital arrangement etc.

Directorships held by Mr. Mehta in other companies are as under:
Sr. No. Name of the Company
1 Amgis Holdings Pvt Ltd
Pals Overseas Pvt Ltd
Jyoti Bright Bar Pvt Ltd
Sigma Credit & Capital Services P i.td
S.). Capital Advisors Pvt Ltd
Smart Card IT Solutions Ltd
Jayavant Products Limited
SJ Finstock Pvt Ltd
DND Financial Services P Ltd

C® NG L BN

Mr. Mehta is member of Share Transfer Committee, Audit €ommittee and
Remuneration Committee in Jayavant Products Limited.

Mr. Mehta holds 100000 equity shares in the Company as on 31% March 2013
c) Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting:

During the financial year 2012-2013, 11 Board Meetings were held on 18" April
2012, 14™ May 2012, 30"™ June 2012, 16™ July 2012, 14" August 2012, 3%
September 2012, 5 November 2012, 29" January 2013, 8™ February 2013, 25t
February 2013 and 30" March 2013. The last Annual General Meeting of the
Company was held on 29" September 2012. The details of attendance of
Directors in Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting are as follows.

Name of the No. of Board Meetings Attendance at
Director Attended Last Annual
° General Meeting |
Mr. Suresh Gaggar 11 Yes

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



Mr, Deven Mehta 10 Yes
Mr. Dinesh Nandwana 10 Yes
Mr. Sharad Rathi 10 Ng
Mr. Ramakant Gaggar 11 Yes
d) Code of Conduct :

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior
management of the company. The Company has obtained the confirmation of the
Compliance with the Code from all its Board members and senior management

personnel.
3. Audit Committee
aj) Constitution of Audit Committee:

The Committee comprises three Non-executive Directors majority of them are
independent directors. All members of the Committee are financially literate.

b) Composition of Audit Committee and Number of Meetings Attended:
During the Financial year 2012-2013, Five Audit Committee Meetings were held
on 14" May 2012, 14™ August 2012, 3" September 2012, 5™ November 2012
and 29" January 2013. The composition of the Audit Committee and the number
of meeting attended were as under:

Committee Members No. of Meetings
Attending the Designation ’ Attended
Meeting
Mr. Sharad Rathi Chairman 5
Mr. Dinesh Nandwana Member 5
Mr. Suresh Gaggar Member 5

c) Attendees:
The Audit Committee invites such of the executives, as it considers appropriate to
be present at its meetings. The Executive- Accounts attend such meetings. The
Statutory Auditors are also invited to these meetings.

d) The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee:
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee as defined by the Board are as
under:
1) Hold discussions with the auditors periodically about internal control

systems, the scope of audit including the observations of the auditors and
review the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board and also ensure compliance of internal control
systems. '

i) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure
of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible.

ii1) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if
required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the
fixation of audit fees.

iv) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered
by the statutory auditors.

v} Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approvai, with particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board's Report in terms of clause
(2AA) of section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956.

() Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



(¢) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise
of judgement by management.

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
out of audit findings.

(e) Compliance with listing and other iegal requirements relating to
financial statements.

(" Disclosure of any related party transactions.

(9) Qualifications in the draft audit report. .

vi) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements
before submission to the board for approval.

vii) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems.

viii)  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

ix) Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up
there on.

x) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

Xi) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern,

xii)  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders {in case of non payment of
declared dividends) and creditors.

Xiil)  Review of information as prescribed under Clause 49 (IT)(E) of the listing
agreement.

e) Powers of the Audit Committee:
The Board has delegated the following powers to the Audit Committee:
i) Investigating any activity within its terms of reference as above, or in
relation to the items specified in Section 292A of the Companies Act,
1956, or as may be referred to it by the Board, from time to time and for
this purpose, it shall have full access to information contained in the
records of the Company and external professional advice, if necessary

i) Seek information from any employee.

fii) Obtain outside legal or other professional advice, if necessary.

iv) Secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers
necessary.

4. Subsidiary company: .
a) The company has one subsidiary company namely Sukartik Clothing Private
Limited. Mr. Suresh Gaggar, Mr. Navratan Gaggar and Mr. Ramakant Gaggar are
on the the Board of the subsidiary company.

b) The audit committee of the company reviews the financial statements of and
investments made by the subsidiary company.

c) The minutes of subsidiary company are placed before the board of directors of the
company.

d) Significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary
company are, periodically, also brought to the attention of the board of the
company.

5. Remuneration Committee

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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a) Composition of Remuneration Committee and the number of meetings attended:
During the financial year 2012-2013, Mr. Deven Mehta, Mr. Suresh Gaggar and
Mr. Ramakant Gaggar were Members of the Remuneration Committee but there
Were no meetings of the remuneration committee held.
b) Terms of reference:
The committee has the mandate to review and recommend Compensation payable
to the executive directors and senior Mmanagement of the company. It shall also
administer the company’s stock option plans, if any, including the review and
grant of the stock options to eligible employees under plans. The committee may
review the performance of the Executive Directors, if any and for the said purpose
may lay down requisite parameters for each of the executive directors at the
beginning of the year.
c) Remuneration Policy:
i) Management Staff
Remuneration of employees largely consists of basic remuneration and
Perquisites. The components of the total remuneration vary for different
grades and are governed by industry patterns, qualifications and
experience of the employee, responsibilities handled by him, his individual
performance, etc.

i) Non-Executive Directors :
The Company does not pay any sitting fees to the Non-executive
Directors.
0. Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee
a) Constitution and Composition of Shareholders’ Grievance Committee:

The Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee has been constituted to look
into investor's complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of declared
dividends, etc. and take necessary steps for redressal thereof. The Committee is
a Board level committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. Suresh Gaggar, a Non-
Executive Director. No Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee Mestings
held during the financial year 2012-2013. The Composition of the
Shareholders/Investors’ Grievance Committee and the number of meeting
attended were as under:

Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Suresh Gaggar Chairman 0
Mr. Ramakant Gaggar Member 0
| Mr. Deven Mehta Member 0 ]
b) Mr. Ramakant Gaggar is the Compliance officer of the Company.
c) During the year 2012-2013, the Company has not received any complaints from

shareholders / investors. There were no complaints pending as at end of the year.

d) Share Transfers in Physical Mode
Shares sent for physical transfer are generally registered and returned within a
period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in all
respects. The Shareholders’ Committee of the Company meets as often as
required,

7. General Body Meetings

a) Location, time and date of holding of the last three Annual General Meetings are
given below:

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED '




F"E:;?a] Date Time Location of the Meeting

2009-10 | 29/09/10 10.00 A.M | Raheja Chambers, Nariman Point Mumbai -
400 021

2010-11 | 29/09/11 11.00 A.M | Raheja Chambers, Nariman Poaint Mumbai -
400 021

2011-12 | 29/09/12 | 11.00 A.M Raheja Chambers, Nariman Point Mumbai —

400 021
b) Special Resolutions during previous three Annual General Meetings:
Fmvz:::_'al Particulars of Special Resolutions Passed
2009-10 | Nil
2010-11 | Nil
2011-12 | Nil
c) No Special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal baliot at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
8. Disclosures
a) Related Party Transactions:

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the
Company with its Promoters, Directors or Management, their subsidiaries or
relatives, etc that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large.

Attention of members is drawn to the disclosures of transactions with the related
parties set out in Note 26 of Notes on financial statements.

The Company’s major related party transactions are generally with its Associates
considering various business and other factors.

All related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are only
intended to further the interest of the Company.

b) Statutory Compliance,Penalties and Strictures:

The Company has complied with requirements of the Stock Exchange/SEBI and
Statutory Authorities on all matters related to capital markets during the last
year. There are no penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authorities relating to the above,

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreements. The Company does not have Whistle Blower Policy.No
employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the

Company.

c) The Company has complied with the non-mandatory requ]reménts relating to
remuneration Committee. The financial statements of the Company are
ungualified.

9. General Shareholder Information

a) Means of Communication:

The quarterly results of the Company are generally published in Free Press
Journal and Dainik Navshakti. The Company proposes that all guarteriy, half-
yearly and full year audited results be published at least in 2 newspapers. The

GARNET INTERNATICANL LIMITED

12



quarterly results shall further be submitted to the Bombay Exchange Limited
shortly after the conclusion of the respective meetings.

No presentations were made to institutional investors or to the analysts during
the year under review,

b) Annual General Meeting:
* Day, Date and Time : Saturday, 6" July 2013 at.
11.00 a.m.
= Venue : 901, Raheja Chambers,*
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
« Financial Year : 2012-2013
The Company follows April-March as its
financial year. The results for every quarter
beginning from April are declared in the
month following the quarter.
= Date of Book Closure : 5% July 2013 June to 6 July 2013
{both days inclusive).
= Dividend payment date : N.A,

= Listing on Stock Exchanges: The Company's shares are listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited ("BSE") and
Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited
("CSE”). The Company has paid the listing
fees to the Bombay Stock Exch‘ange Limited.

c) Stock Code / Symbol:
BSE - 512493
CSE - 35007
ISIN No: - INE590B01010
(Fully paid up shares having face value of Rs. 10)

d) Market Price Data:

The monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd. During each month post listing is as follows:

Month BSE
High Low
) <)
Aprit 2012 96.15 79.00
May 2012 99.95 65.70
June 2012 98.50 78.05
July 2012 102.00 86.65
August 2012 99.85 |, 73.50
September 2012 104.00 76.00
October 2012 109.90 86.95
November 2012 102.90 77.75
December 2012 99.85 74.10
January 2013 80.70 65.75
February 2013 84.00 70.50
March 2013 88.00 61.70

e) Share Price Movement for the period April, 2012 to March 2013 Garnet
International Limited vs BSE Sensex

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED




f)

9)

h)
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Share Transfer System:

Applications for transfer of shares held in physical form are received at the office
of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. They attend to
share transfer formalities at least once in 15 days.

Shares held in the dematerialized form are electronically traded in the Depository

and the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company pericdically receive.

from the Depository the beneficiary holdings so as to enable them to update their
records for sending ali corporate communications, dividend warrants, etc.

Physical shares received for dematerialisation are processed and completed within
a period of 21 days from the date of receipt, provided they are il order in every
respect. Bad deliveries are immediately returned to Depository Participants under
advice to the shareholders.

Category wise Shareholding as at March 31, 2013:

Sr. Category No. of Shares %
No. held
1. Promoter Group 2800476 44.99%
2. Non-Resident Indians 198886 3.19%
3. Private Bodies Corporate 2162539 34.74%
4. Indian Public 1053124 16.92%
5. Market Maker 9975 0.16%
Total 6225000 | 100.00%

Distribution of Shareholding as at March 31, 2013

Shareholding No. of Share
of Nominal Value Shareh % of Capital ., % of Total
(Rs.) olders Total Amount

(Rs.)
1 - 5,000 623 73.5540 829390 1.3320
5,001 - 10,000 77 9.0910 599670 0.9640
10,001 - 20,000 46 5.4310 663670 1.0660
20,001 - 30,000 27 3.1880 677690 1.0890
30,001 - 40,000 5 0.5900 170360 0.2740

GARNET INTERNATIOANL HIMITED
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i)

k)

m)

40,001 - 50,000 9 1.0630 441590 0.7090
50,001 - 100,000 14 1.6530 961560 1.5450
100,001 and above 46 5.4310 57905770 93.0210
TOTAL 847 | 100.0000 | 62250000 100.0000

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

About 99.86% of the shares have been dematerialized as on March 31, 2013. The
equity shares of the Company are traded at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
and Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited (CSE).

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on equity: 5

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs. There were no outstanding
convertible warrants as on March 31, 2013.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:
Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L. B. S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai-400078.

Plant Locations: The Company does not have any manufacturing activities.

Address for Correspondence;

For any assistance regarding dematerialisation of shares, share transfers,
transmissions, change of address, non-receipt of dividend or any other query
relating to shares:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, '
L. B. S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai-400078.

Tele: 022 — 25963838

Fax: 022 - 25946969 / 25960329

For general correspondence:

Garnet International Limited
Secretarial Department

901, Raheia Chambers,

Free Press Journal Marg,

Nariman Point Mumbai - 400 021.
Tel; 022 - 66369942

Fax: 022 - 66369943

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



CODE OF CONDUCT DECLARATION

As provided under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, all Board

Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct for
the year ended on 31% March, 2013.

For Garnet International Limited

Sharad Rathi

Chairman - Audit Committee
Place: Mumbai

Date: 27™ May 2013

CEQ/CFO Certification
As required by sub clause V of the listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, I have certified
to the Board that for the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Company has complied with
the requirements of the said sub clause.

For Garnet International Limited

Sharad Rathi

Chairman - Audit Committee
Place: Mumbai

Date: 27" May 2013

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED 16



GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members,
GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

3
We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by
GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (“the company”}, for the year ended on March 31,
2013, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the company with Stock
Exchange(s) in India, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the

company and furnished to us and the report of Corporate Governance as approved
by the Board of Directors of the company.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
company’s management. Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and the representation made by the directors and management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement subject to that the company does
not have the whole time company secretary to act as the secretary of the audit
committee which is not in conformity with the requirements of clause 49 of the listing
agreement with the stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future

viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For and on hehalf of
R. 5. AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Anuja Dedhia
Partner

M. No. 123589
Place : Mumbai

Dated :27*"May 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements, which may be identified by their use
of words like ‘plans’, ‘expects’ or other words of similar meaning. All statements that
address expectations or projections about the future, including but not limited to
statements about the company’s strategy for growth, product development, market
position, expenditures, and financial results, are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of
future events. The company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and
expectations are accurate or will be realized. The company's actual results,
performance or achievements could thus differ materially from those projected in any
such forward-looking statements. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any
subsequent developments, information or events.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS :

The company is constantly exploring available opportunities. The company has taken
constructive steps to undertake activities pertaining to garment industries and allied
textile line through its subsidiary.

Opportunities and Threats
There is intense competition in the seamless garments produced by the subsidiary
company still the company expects good opportunities through better guality control.

Qutlook
The new activities in the subsidiary company promise a bright future. The profit

margins in the sector may increase further with expected iiberalized government
policies.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Garnet’s internal control systems and procedures are adequately commensurate with
the magnitude of its current business. The operating and business control
procedures have been planned and implemented in a manner that ensures efficient
use of resources, as well as compliance with procedures and regulatory
requirements. The internal control system is being further strengthened by laying
out well-documented guidelines, approval and authorization procedures.

Environment and Safety

Being conscious of the need for environmentally clean and safe operations, the
Company conducts its operations ensuring safety of all concerned, compliance of
statutory and industrial requirements for environmental protection and conservation
of natural resources to the extent possible.

Human Resources

During the year under review, the Company has enjoyed cordial professional
relations with employees at all levels.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financiat statements of Garnet internationat Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting peolicies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in
India including Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”). This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control refevant to the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements, subject to cur comments in paragraph 2(f) below and the consequential effects thereof which are not quantifiable,
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generaily accepted in India:

a. inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

b. inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss , of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
¢. inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

y

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2003 ("the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in

terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

h. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub section {3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2013, from being appeinted as a director in terms
of clause (g) of sub-section {1} of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

f. as stated in note 30 to financial statements,

i) Loans & Advances, invelving an amount of ¥ 82,25,000/- (year end outstanding ¥ 82,25,000 /-} given during the year
under review, are in contravention of provisions of Section 295 of the Act; and

i) Contracts of purchase and sale of shares amountmg to¥ 3,67,487.20/- and ¥ 32,46,584.94/- respectlve]y entered in to
during the year, are in contravention of provisions of section 297 of the Act;

The possible impact of these non-compliances, in the event of the Company’s condonation reguests are not granted
has not beern determined or recogriized in the financial statements.

For R. S. AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration no. 100156W)

Anuja Dedhia
Partner
27% May 2013 M. No. 123589

Mumbai
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Annexure to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date

1.

in respect of fixed assets: .

a)  the Company has maintained records, showing particulars including guantitative details and situation of its fixed
assets;

b)  as explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at the end of year. We are
informed that no material discrepancies have been noticed by the management on such verification as compared to
the aforesaid records of fixed assets; and

¢} during the year Company has not disposed off substantial part of fixed assets that affects the going concern.

in respect of inventory:

a) as explained to us, inventories of shares and securities have been physically verified during the year by the
management. in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable:

b)  the procedures, as explained to us, that followed by the management for physical verification of shares and securities,
are, in cur opinion, reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business: and

c) on the basis of our examination of the records of shares and securities of the Company, we are of the opinion that, the
Company is maintaining proper records, No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of shares
and securities held as stock-in-trade as compared to book records.

according to information and explanation given to us ;

a) the Company has granted interest free unsecured loan to the companies, firm and other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act. The maximum amount invelved during the year was T 2,22,25,000/- to 4

parties. The year end balance was ¥ 2,12,25,000 /- from such 4 parties ( including 3 parties having outstanding since
last year);

b}  the terms and conditions of the aforesaid interest free loans granted are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company:

c) the receipt of principal amount of the aforesaid loans granted is regular;

d)  since the aforesaid loans granted, as informed to us, are receivable on demand, no amount has been classified as
overdue;

e)  the Company has taken unsecured loan from the companies, firm and other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 301 of the Act. The maximum amount involved during the year was ¥ 1,43,16,700/- from 3 parties. The
year end balance was ¥ 31,41,700/- from such 2 parties;

f) the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loans taken were prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company
and such loans were taken free of interest; and

9)  since the aforesaid unsecured loans taken, as informed to us, were repayable on demand, therefore the payment of the
principal amount is considered to be regular.

on the basis of selective checks carried out during the course of audit and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there is adeguate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business
for purchase of fixed assets and for sale of services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major
weaknesses in internal control system.

a) accerding to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or

arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act, have been entered in the register required to be maintained under
that section; and

b) in our epinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of
contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act and exceeding the value of
rupees five lacs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to
the prevailing market prices at the relevant time where such market prices are available. However, /n respect of certain

transactions of purchase and sale of shares, we are unable to comment in absence of similar Fransactions with other
parties at the refevant Hme.

in our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of section 58A and 58AA of
the Act and the Rules framed there under.

the Company, being a listed company, also the Company's paid-up capital and reserves at the commencement of financial
year exceeds < fifty lacs and with average annual turnover of preceding three years exceeding 7 five crores, is required to
have an internal audit system, frowever, the Company, during the year, had no such internal audit systen;

we are informed that the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 209 {1) (d}
of the Act,

in respect of statutory dues:

a) according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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with the appropriate authorities as applicable to it. There are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues as at the last day
of financial year concerned, outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable; and

b} on the basis of the information given to us, the outstanding amount of income tax under the Income Tax Act ,1961 on
account of any dispute are as follows :

Assessment year to Amount (I) Forum where dispute is pending
which the amount

relates

2011-12 2,98,77,158/-

2010-11 1,03.75,398/-

2009-10 8,67,878/- Commissioner of Income Tax
2008-09 27,13,106/- {Appeals)

2006-07 16,94,507/-

2005-06 17,31,627/-

10. the accumulated losses of the Company at the end of the financial year have not exceeded fifty percent of its net worth. The
Cempany has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under audit and also in the immediately,preceding financial
year;

11. as per the informaticn and explanation given to us and based on documents and record produced to us, there were no dues
payable to any financial institution, bank or debenture holders during the year:

12. according to the information and explanation given to us and based on documents and record produced to us, the Company
has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities;

13. in our cpinion, the Company is not a chit or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund or a society;

14, in respect of dealing / trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, in our apinion and according to the
infarmation and explanations given to us, records have been maintained of the transactions and contracts and timely entries
have been made therein. The shares and other investments have been held by the Company in its own name or in process of
transfer in the name of the Company except to the extent of exemptions provided by section 49 of the Act;

15. according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions;

16. as perthe records of the Company, the Company has not obtained any term loan during the year;

17. as per the information and explanation given to us and on the overall examinations of the financial statements of the
Company, we are of the opinion that funds raised on short-term basis have not been utilized for long-term investments;

18. during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of share to parties and companies covered in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Act: :

19. the Company did not have any outstanding debenture during the year;
20. the Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year; and

21. based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by the management, we report
that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For R. S. AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration no. 100156W)

Anuja Dedhia

Partner
27" May 2013 M. No. 123589

Mumbai
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2013

{Amount in T)

Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03,2012

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds

Share capital 2 62250000.00 47250000.00
Reserves and surplus 3 358130583.31 170116896.19
420380583.31 217366896.19
Non-currant liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 4 323501.00 294607.00
Current liabililties
Short term borrowings 5 13491700.00 20534140.00
Trade payables 6 366155.65 5035710.51
Other current liabililties 7 6624775.40 37738649.00
Short term provisions g 194311.73 2179564.75
20676942.78 65488064.26
TOTAL 441381027.09 + 283149567.45
ASSETS
Non current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 4198445.01 F774311.19
Intangible assets 9 0.00 Q.00
4198445.01 777431118
Non-current investments 10 146860114.34 150860114.34
Long term loans and advances 11 203105000.00 2605000.00
Cther non current assets 12 13510073.00 13510073.00
367673632.35 174749498.52
Current assets
Inventories 13 17806062.19 28044442.06
Trade receivables 14 873194.75 342194.75
Cash and bank balances 15 545172.07 3508110.96
Short term loans and advances 16 54459934.13 16482923.13
Qther current assets 17 23031.60 22398.03
73707394.74 108400068.93
TOTAL 441381027.09 283149567.45
Contingent Liahilites and Commitments 26
{To the extent not provided for )
Significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes to financial statements
As per our attached report of even date i
For R. S. Agrawal & Assaciates For and on behalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 100156W
Anuja Dedhia Ramakant Gaggar Swuresh Gaggar
Partner Director Drirgctor
Membership no. 123589
Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 27" May 2013 Dated: 27" May 2013
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in )

Particulars Naote No. For the year ended 31.03.2013 For the year ended 31.03.2012
Revenusa from cperations 18 25234558.74 167120754.71
Other income 19 383851.18 90533037.40
Total Revenue 25618409.92 257653792.11
Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 20 11828128.67 190795123.25
Changes in inventories 21 10238379.87 41395530.69
Employee benefit expenses 22 705032.00 747184.00
Finance cost 23 .00 5397806.00
Depreciation and amgrtisation expenses 9 572916.17 572154.31
Other expenses 24 1334660.84 12285842.71
Total expenses 24679117.55 251193640.96
Profit before Tax 939292.37 6460151.15
Tax expenses
Current tax 246100.00 1753625.00
Deferred tax 28894.00 5779.00
MAT credit entitlement 0.00 (1598540.00)
274994.00 160864.00
Profit after tax for the period 664298.37 6299287.15
Earning per equity share 25
Basic and Diluted 0.14 1.33
Significant accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes to financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For R. 5. Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 100156W

Anuja Dedhia
Partner
Membership no. 123589

Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

For and on behalf of the board

Ramakant Gaggar

Director

Mumbai

Dated: 27th May 2013

Suresh Gaggar
Director



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 315t March, 2013

tAmount in 3)

(A) CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES 2012-2013 2011-2012
Net profit befere tax and extraordinary items 939292.37 6460151.15
Adjustment for:

Depreciation 57291617 572154.31
Miscellaneous expenditure written off 0.00 Q.00
Less / (Profit) on sale of Investments (11609.00) (79870267.09)
Loss / (Profit) an sale of land {5145000.00) 0.00

Investment Income:
- Interest

- Dividend

Interest Expenses

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

(383851.18}
(267019.50)
0.00

(4295271.14)

{152266.43)
(983392.75)
5397806.00

(68575814.81)

Adjutment for:

- Trade and other Receivables (179008644.57) 60497958 .64
- Inventories 10238379.87 41395530.69
- Trade Payables {35777482.46) 42172554.54
Cash generated from operations (208843018.30) 21042069.06

Direct taxes paid
Cash flow before extraordinary items

(1764799.02)

(210607817.32)

(749498.54}

20292570.52

Extraordinary Items 0.0Q 0.00
NET CASH FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES {210607817.32) , 20292570.52
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Salef{Purchase} of Investments (Net) 4000000.00 (57742416.67)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (7050.00) {8900.00)
Loan { given )/ Refund 0.00 0.00

Sale of Fixed Assets 81550090.00 Q.00
Interest / Other income 383851.18 152266.43
Profit / (Loss) on sale of Investments 11609.00 79870267.09
Dividend received 267019.50 983392.75
Proceeds from / Payment for Deposits .00 0.00

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1281042968 23254609.60

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 15000000.00 0.00
Premium on Issue of Share Capital 187349188.75 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0.00 0.00
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 0.00 20534140,00
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings (7042440.00) {70000000.00)
Changes in Working Capital Borrowings from Banks Q.00 0.00
Interest Paid 0.00 (5397806.00) ¢
Dividend paid {472500.00) (4725000.00)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

194834248.75

(59588666.00)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AMD CASH EQUIWALENTS (A+B+C)
CPENING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(16041485.88)
19549596.84
3508110.96

(2963138.89)
35084110.96
545172.07

Notes to cash flow statement:
1. All figures in brackets are outflow,
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date

For R.S.AGRAWAL & ASS0OCIATES
Chartered Accountants
{Registration no. 100156W)

For and on behalf of the Board

Anuja Dedhia Suresh Gaggar
Partner Director
Membership No. 123589

Ramakant Gaggar
Director

Pilace : Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013
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Note 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING

i) The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in India and the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 following the mercantile
system of accounting and recognising income and expenditure on accrual basis.,

ii) The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period
in which the results are known or materialised.

2. PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i} The accounts have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable accounting principles in India, the
applicable Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3c) of the Companies Act, 1956 and therelevant provisions
thereof,

ii} All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Revised Scheduie VI to the Companies Act, 1956,

iii) Based on the nature of activity and the time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current
classification of assets and liabitities.

3. TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSET

i} Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition including any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working
condition, less accumulated depreciation.

i) Intangible fixed asset comprising software licenses are stated at cost of acquisition including any cost attributable
bringing the asset to its working condition, less accumulated amortisation, Any expenses on such software licenses for
support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4. INVESTMENTS

i} Investments are classified into Non Current and Current Investrments.

ii} Non Current investments are being valued at cost of acquisition. Provision is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the carrying amount of long term investments.
i} Current investments are being valued at cost or market value whichever is lower.

5. VALUATION OF STOCK OF SHARES AND SECURITIES

Shares and securities held as “stock-in-trade” are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is*lower and on FIFO
hasis.

6. DEPRECIATION

i} No depreciation is provided on land.

if) Depreciation on fixed assets is being provided on “Straight line method basis” at the rates specified in Scheduled XIV to
the Act.

iii) Depreciation in respect of addition to fixed assets is provided on pro-rata basis from the month in which such assets are
acquired/ installed.

iv) Depreciation on fixed assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided at their respective rates up
to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.

7. EXPENDITURE FOR BENEFIT OF ENDURING NATURE

Miscellaneous expenditure, such as preliminary expenditure and share issue expenditure is amortised over a period of 5
years from the financial year in which it is incurred,

8. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

Incomes from Investments, where appropriate, are taken into revenue in full on declaration or receipt and tax deducted at
source therecn is treated as advance tax.

9. TREATMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ‘

Contingent liabitities are disclosed by way of note to the accounts, Disputed demands in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax
etc. are disclosed as contingent liabilities. Payments in respect of such demands, if any, are shown as advances till the final
disposal of the matter.

10. TAXES ON INCOME;
Income tax expense comprises of Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made on the
assessable income at the rate applicable for the relevant assessment year. The Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax
Liability are calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date. Deferred fax assets, arising mainly on account of unabsorbed depreciation and losses under tax laws, are
recognized, only if there is a virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred Tax Assets on
account of other timing differences are recognized, only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. At
each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization.

GARNET INTERNATICANL LIMITED




GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in T)

Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Note 2: Share capital 1
Numbers Amount(T) Numbers Amount(T)
Authorised:
Equity Shares of T 10/- each 7500000 75000000.00 7500000 75000000.00
Total 75000000.00 75000000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up :
Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid 6225000 62250000.00 4725000 47250000.00
Total £2250000.00 47250000.00
2.a Reconciliation of numkber of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end cf the reporting pericd :-
Particulars Numbers Amount (T} Numbers Amount (%)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 4725000 47250000.00 4725000 47250000.00
Issued during the year 1508000 15000000.00 - -
Bought back during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 6225000 62250000.00 4725000 47250000.00

2.p During the year the Company has, on preferential basis, alloted 1500000 equity share of T 10/- at a premium of ¥ 125/- per share as per SEB| Guidelines. Expenses

relating to it has been reduced from the Securities Premium.

g
A

2.

o

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capita! at the end of the year:

Name of shareholders
Shri Ramakant Gaggar
Evergreen Infotech & Datacom Private limited
Smt. Indra Gaggar
Shri Suresh Gaggar
= “Navkar Corporation Limited

Note 3: Reserves and surplus

Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Received during the year on issue of shares

326500000.00
150811.25

Less : Share Issue expenses

Surplus in Statement of Profit and loss :

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add (less): Profit (loss) after tax for the year

1ess:
Proposed dividend for the year [Dividend per share  Nil (P.Y. ¥ 0.10}]
Provision for tax on proposed dividend for the year

Total
Note 4: Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of :
Depreciation

Deferred Tax Assets on account of
Business Losses *
Gratuity

Total

* Defarred tax assets arising on losses has not been recognized in view of uncertainty in generating the profit in the future.

Note 5: Short term borrowings

Unsecured Loans;
Loans repayable on demand from other parties
Loans repayable on demand from Asscciate Company {refer note 28)

Total
Note 6: Trade payables 0
Micro and small enterprises*
Others
Total

Numbers
979079
500778
454921
464206

1500000

139000000.00
187500000.00

31116896.19
664298.37

0.00
0.00

The equity shares of the Company have rights and restrictions as prescribed under law. in particular the Companies Act, 1956.

% of Holding
15,73

8.04

7.31

7.46

24.10

3263495188.75

31781194.56

358130383.31

343200.00

0.00
1969%.00

323501.00

13491700.00
0.00

13491700.00

0.00
366155.65

366155.65

* Numbers
908743
500778
458921
487206

139000000.00
0.00

139000000.00

0.00

25366760.04

©299287.15

A472500.00
76651.00

% of Holding
19.23
10.60

9.71
10.31

135000000.00

31116896,19

170116896.19

352150.00

39682.00
17861.00

294607.00

12184140.00
8350000.00

20534140.00

0.00
5035710.51

5035710.51

* Ag per the information available with the Company in respense to the enguiries from all existing suppliers with whom Company deals, none of the suppliers arg
registered as micro and small enterprises under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at 31st March 2013.

Note 7: Other current liabilities
Unpaid dividencds*
Statutery liabilities
Accrued Expenses
Other Payables

Total

* There is no outstanding dues te be paid to Investor Education and Pratection Fund.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

162816.40
38318.00
3641.00
©420000.00

6624775.40

¥

149272.00
35258.00
4119.00
37550000.00

37738649.00

26



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes en Fingncial Stataments for the Year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in ¥}

Particulars

As at 31.03.2013

As ar 31.03.2012

Note 8: Short term provisions

Provision for empioyees benefits {Gratuity) {refer notez9}

63750.00 57804.00
Provision for taxation {net of taxes paid} 130561.73 1572609.75
Provision for proposed dividend 0.00 472500.00
Provision for tax on proposed dividend 0.00 76651.00
Total 124311.73 T J179564.95
Note 9: Fixed assets {Amount in 7}
GROSS BLOCK (At Cost) DEPREFZIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Selditransfer Total As at Provided Provided Wnttep Back Total Totatl Totatl
31.03.2012 durin during 31.03.2013 upto for the Year during upto as a as a
PARTICULARS the Yoor the Yemrs 31,03.2012 the Year 31.03.2013 | 31.032013 | 3103.2012
Tangible Assets
Langd 3088020.00 c.0c 3010000.00 78090.00 G.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7809C.00 3088090.00
Vehicle 5160200.00 0.0C 0.00 5160200.00 1116500.91 490219.00 0.00 160671591 3553480.08 4043699.09
Office Equipments 1210810.05 C.00 0.00 1210810.05 647940.25 57513.48 0.00 705453.72 505356.33 562869.80
Computers 551700.00 7050.00 0.00 558750.00 502364.77 11573.94 0.00 513938.71 44811.29 49335.23
Electric Equiptment 192500.00 0.00 0.00 192500.00 162182.93 13609.75 0.00 175792.68 16707.32 30317.07
intangible Asset
Cnmguter Software 3481275.00 0.00 0.00 3481275.00 3481275.00 0.00 0.00 3481275.00 .00 {0.00)
Total as at 31.03,2013 13684575.05 7050.00 3010000.00 | 1068162505 5910263.87 572916.17 0.00 6453180.03 4198445.01 7774311.18
Total as at 31.03.2012 13675675.05 8900.00 0.00 | 13684575.05 5338109.56 572154.31 0.00 5910263.87
9.1 Land transferred to “Stock in trade” vide board resolution dated 30th june 2012 as due to technical reasons the land can not be used for mining purposes. -
.
Nate 10: Non-current investments
Cther than trade {at cost): Numbers Amount(T) Numbers Amount(T)
Quoted: Investrments in fully paid equity instruments:
Ambiticus Plastomac Company Limited having face value of ¥ 10/- 206400 6147550.00 206400 6147550.00
Suryajyeti Spinning Mills Limited having face value of T 10/-# 75000 4053828.95 75000 4053828.95
Vakrangee Software Limited having face value of T 1/- (P.Y T 10/-) 720 5952.39 36 5852.39
Unquoted: Investments in fully paid equity instruments:
a} Investment in a Subsidiary Company (refer note 26) .
Sukartik Ciothing Pvt. Ltd having face value of T 10/- 121000 16700000.00 121000 16700000,00
b) Investment in an Associate Company: (refer note 26)
Bhuta Investment Pyt Ltd having face vaiue of T 100/- 60000 12000000.00 60000 12000000¢.00
€} Investment in Shares of other Companies:
T.N.R Infrastructures Limited having face value of ¥ 10/- 1435000G 107625000.00 1435000 107625000.00
Relisble Smart City Private Limited having face value of ¥ 10/- 0 .00 400000 4000000.00
Investments in Government securities
Naticnal Saving Certficates* 230 23000.00 230 23000.00
Other non-current investment
Silver bar 16.445Kg 304783.00 16.445Kg 304783.00
Total 146860114.34 . 150860114.34
Particulars - Boak value (7} Market value (T)** Book value (T)  Market value (T)++
Aggregate value of:
Quoted investments 10207331.34 1139448.,00 10207331.34 2037925.80
Unguoted investments 136325000.00 N.A, 14(325000.00 N.A.
(*} stands in the name of one of the directors
** The market value of quoted investments is based on the Bombay Stock Exchange guotations as on 31,.03.2013 or nearest traded date, wherever available. The
" market value of shares, for which the guotations of the Bombay Stock Exchange were nat available, has been considered as nil.
# 75000 equity shares of Suryajyoti Spinning Mills Limited, were given as security to VSB Investment Private Limited, towards margin for trading in shares and
securities, ’
Note 11; Long term loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good € f
Security deposit 30000.00 30000.00
Share Application money
To a company in which two directors of the company are members and
director 575000.00 575000.00
Others 0.00 2000000.00
575000.00 2575000.00
Intercorporate Loans 202500000.00 0.00
Total 203105000.00 2605000.G0
Note 12: Other non current assets
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 13510073.00 13510073.00
Total 13510073.00 5 13510073.00
27
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GARMNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes gn Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in ¥)

Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Note 13; Inventories
Stock-in- trade- Shares 17806062.19 28044442.06
Total 17806062.19

Details of Stock -in- trade- Shares{ Face value of T 10} each):

]

343213 {P.Y 538913) equity shares of Gini Silk Mills Ltd
1200(P.¥ 1200) equity shares of Jayavant Products Limited
75( P.Y Nil) equity shares of |.Kumnar Infra Project Ltd

573733 (P.Y 616733 equity shares of Pankaj Polymers Limited {PPOL)
Nil (PY 271522) eguity shares of Pankaj Polypack Limited (PPL}*
18(P.Y 18) equity shares of Reliable Ventures India Limited

* glioted as per scheme of demerger of PPOL in the ratio of 12:5, accordingly, the carrying cost of PPL shares has been adjusted.

Note 14: Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered goed

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are

due for payments
Other debts

Due from a company in which a director of the company is member and

director
Due from 2 director

Total
Note 15: Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
P n a Current account
In a Unpaid dividend account*
Cash in hand

Other bank balances

Fixed deposits with banks with maturity period more than 3 months but upto

12 months.

Fixed deposits with banks with maturity period maore than 12 months.

Less: Fixed deposits with banks with maturity peried more than 12 months

transferred to "Other Non Current Assets”, refer note 12)

Total

* Earmarked against the corresponding provision.
Note 16: Short term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to related parties {refer note 28}
Office Deposits to Associate company
Loan te Subsidiary company
Loan to Associate company

Intercorporate loans
To the companies in which director(s} is{are} member(s} and
director{s)
Others

Prepaid expenses
Advance to employees
Cther receivables
Total
Note 17: Other current assets
Interest Accrued on fixed deposits

Interest Accrued on National saving certificate
*

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMHTED

0.00

531000.00

5250000.00

22679737.13

11034297.95
41940.00
1120561

6718413.43
.00
205.20

17806062,19

34218475

531000.00

873184 75

116851.67
162816.40
198755.00

66749.00

0.00

0.00

545172.07

10000000.00
13000000.00
2975000.00

27929737.13
42197.00
13000.00

500000.00

544589934.13

20655.60
2376.00

23031.60

34219475
0.00

13250000

22204752.13

+

28044442.06

21529574.35
28560.00
11205.61

4175282.41
2299551.67
268.02

28044442.06

0.00

34219475

34219475

328034596
149272.00
53969.00

24524 00

0.00

0.00

3508110.86

30000000.00
11000000.00
.00

35454752.13
23171.00
5000.00
Q.00

76482923.13

20201.03
2197.00

22388.03
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Netes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in T)

Particutars Far the year ended 31.03.2013 For the year ended 31.03.2012

Note 18: Revenue from operations

Sale of Shares
Profit {toss) on sale of Shares transaction - intra-day
Prefit {ioss) on Shares transacticns- F & O
Sale of Land ( refer note 9.1)
Other operating revenues
Divitend 267019.5¢

Commission 5142440.00

Total

Note 19: Cther income

interest
on fixed depaosits 259790.18
on National saving certificate 2376.00
on Loans 121685.00

Net gain on sale of Non-current investmenis

Total

Note 20: Purchases of Stock in trade
Shares & Securities
Cost of land transferred from fixed asset (refer note 9.1)

Total
Note 21: Changes in inventories

Opening stocks:
Stock in Trade - Shares

Less:Closing stocks:
Stock in Trade - Shares

Tota!
Note 22: Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and Wages
Contribution te Provident Fund and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total
Note 23: Finance cost

interest paid on loan
Interest on late payment of taxes

Total
Note 24: Cther expenses

Advertisement and publicity
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 27)
Bank charges
Commission and brokerage
Cammunication expenses
Demat charges
Denation
General expenses
Insurance
Legal and professional charges
" Bad debts
Printing and stationery
Prior Peripg Exp.
Rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Securities Transaction Tax
Share Trading Expenses k4
Travelling and conveyance

Total

Note 25 : Earning per equity share

UNIT
Net profit {loss) after tax z
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic
earnings per share Numbers
Face value of eguity shares k4
Basic earnings per share 4
Diluted earnings per share 4

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

16886041.74 210939597.73
(11609.00) {10510503.88)
{5204333.50) (84541731.89)
8155000.00 0.00
98339275

__ 5025000000
5409459.50 51233382.75
25234558.74 167120754.71

590,43

2197.00

149479.00
383851.18 152266.43
0.00 90380770.97

14
383851.18 5, 7.4

8818128.67 190795123.25
3010000.00 0.00
11828128.67 190795123.25
28044442.06 6943997275
17806062.19 28044442.06
023837/9.57 G5530.69

614060.00 63974100
43007.00 43961.00
47965.00 57482.00

70503700 747184.00
0.00 5204031.00
0.00 193775.00

0.06 —___ 539780600
170708.00 113713.00
302492.00 308842.00
7311.46 430.30
0.00 158938.00
€5835.00 192168.00
4588.82 145176.36
0.00 631100.00
61891.19 60650.07
633.00 917.00
170166.40 146807.00
134689.42 6.00
23670.00 81565.00
1500.00 1086.00
36840.00 41721.00
14384 00 17473.00
56122.72 1691804.00
218775.83 8612485.38
64850.00 80966.00°

278584271

‘

664298.37 — 6299287,15
4749p58 -24658 4725600
0 10

0.14 1.33

0.14 1.33
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Note 26: Contingent Liabilites not provided for:

The disputed demand outstanding from the Assessment year 2005-06 to 2011-12 is ¥ 4,66,59,674/-. Based on the decisions of the Appellate
authorities and the interpretations of other relevant provisiens , the Cempany has been iegally advised that the demand is likely to be either

deleted ot substantially reduced and accordingly no provision has been made,

Note 27: Payment to Auditors (including service tax)

Statutery audit under the Companies Act 1956 186630.00
Tax Audit under the Income Tax Act 1961 33708.00
Taxation matters 8427.00
Certifications 3089%.00
Others 32828.00

302492.00

Note 28 : Related party disclosures

193025.00
33090.00
8272.50
30334.50
44120.00

308842.00

Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) -18 “Related Party Disclosures”, notified by Companies {Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2006{as amended) are given below:

n Names of related parties and description of relationships
a) Subsidiary Company
Sukartik Clathing Private Limited
b} Associate Cempany
Bhuta Investment Private Limited
I} Transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at year end with the related parties are as follows:

Particulars Volume of Transactions Balances as on
2012-13 2011-12 31.03.2013 31.03.2012
Current liabililties
Short term berrowings
Unsecured Loans:
Bhuta Investment Private Limited 8350000.00 58100G00.00 Q.00 8350000.00

Non current assets
Non-current investments
Unquoted: Investments in fully paid equity instruments:
Sukartik Clothing Private Limited Q.00 0.00 16700000.00
Bhuta [nvestment Private Limited : 0.00 0.00 1200000000

Cuiweht assets
Short term |eans and advances
Office Deposit

Bhuta investment Private Limited 20000000.00 0.00 10000000.00
Intercorporate loans

Sukartik Clothing Private Limited 2000000.00 1000000.00 13000000.00

Bhuta Investment Private Limited 2975000.00 0.00 2875000.00

Sub note: Related party relationship is identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditars.

1670000000
1200000000

30000000 00

11000000.00
0.00

Note 29:The company has provided gratuity payable to its employees at full value withaut ascertaining the present value of future payment of gratuity

as the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is, in view of number of employees, not applicable to the company. The company has recognised as an expense,

the short term benefits to its employees such as bonus, leave encashment etc.

Note 30: The management is preposing to make applications for condonatian for following non-compliances to the appropriate authorities:

(i) Loans & Advances, invalving an amount of ¥ 82,25,000/-(year end outstanding 2 82,25,000/} given by the company during the year, are in

contravention of provisions of Section 295 of the Act;

{ii} Contracts of purchase and sale of shares and securities, amounting to ¥ 3,67,487.20/- and T 32,46,584 94/- respectively entered into by the

company at arm fength prices during the year, are in contravention of provisions of section 297 of the Act;

Note 31 : The Company has taken office premises on leave and license basis. The same is not non-cancellable and for a period of 11 months and
renewable at the mutual consent at mutually agreeable terms. The Company has given refundable interest free security deposits in accordance with

agreed terms. No rentals are payable on such lease

Note 32: The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this yvear's classification.

As per our attached report of even date
For and on behalf of board
" Fer R. S Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 100156W

Anuja Dedhia Ramakant Gaggar Suresh Gaggar
Partner F Directer Director
Membership no. 123589

Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 27" May 2013 Dated: 27 May 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO,
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (“the Company”) and
its subsidiary M/s. Sukartik Clothing Private Limited {hereinafter referred to as “the subsidiary”), collectively referred to as “the
Group”, as at 31 March 2013, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act, 1956(" the Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility ¢

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
mcludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluatingthe overall presentation of the consalidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

QOpinion
In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, subject fo our comments in
paragrephs 1 and 2 under the heading "Other matters” below and the consequential impact thereof which are not quantifiable,

the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

(i} in the case of the Consclidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2013;

(ity in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss , of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date;
and

(iii} in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other matters 3
1. Asstated in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements:

i) Loans & Advances, involving an amount of T 82, 25,000/~ (year end outstanding ¥ 82,25,000 /-} gfven by the Company
during the year under review, are in contravention of provisions of Section 295 of the Act; and

i} Contracts of purchase and sale of shares amounting to € 3,67,487.20/- and & 32,46,584.94/- respectively entered in to
by the Company during the year, are in contravention of provisions of section 297 of the Act; -

The possible impact of these non-compliances, in the event of the Company’s condonation requests are not granted has
not been determined or recognized in the financial staterments,

2. As stated in note 32 on consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary has, during the year, not made provision for
gratuity as per Accounting Standard-15, the financial impact of the same, as given in the said note, is not ascertainable and
therefore cannot be commented upon.

3. Contrary to the statuteory requirement, the Company and the subsidiary, during the year, had no internal audit system.
®

For R.S.AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
{Registration no. 100156W)

4

Anuja Dedhia
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 27" May 2013 Membership No. 123589

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2013

(Amount in %)

Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 2 62250000.00 47250000.00
Reserves and surplus 3 363778493.87 174483493.11
426028493.87 221733493.11
Minority Interest 2331142964 . 21772536.15
Non-current liabilities
Long Term Borrowing 4 9575.44 116175.59
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 2197761.00 1805487.00
2207336.44. 1921662.59
Current liabiliities
Short term borrowings 6 13726700.00 20769140.00
Trade payables 7 9146717.70 10305579.51
Other current liabililties 8 8704397.36 40180897.50
Short term provisions 9 712487.30 2179564.75
32290302.36 73435181.76
TOTAL 483837562.31 318862873.62
ASSETS <~
Non current assets
Fixed assets L
Tangible assets 10 51165954.51 56910040.58
Intangible assets 10 34723.75 34723.75
51200678.26 56944764.32
Non-current investments il 125621900.69 129892304.66
Leng term loans and advances 12 203523190.00 3682351.13
Other non current assets 13 13510073.00 13826163.00
393855841.95 203745583.11
Current assets
Inventories 14 25304784.13 33053574.78
Trade receivables 15 16150617.05 10829941.40
Cash and bank balances 16 5420076.75 4218551.06
Short term loans and advances 17 42708044.13 66958812.95
Other current assets 18 398198.30

TOTAL

Contingent Liabilities and Commitmen
{To the extent not provided for)

Significant accounting policies

“see accompanying notes to financial statements
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8§9981720.36

483837562.31

56410.32

115117290.51

318862873.62

As per our attached report of eveg date

For R. 5. Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 100156W

Anuja Dedhia
Partner
Membership no. 123589

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

For and on behalf of the board

Ramakant Gaggar
Director

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013

Suresh Gaggar
Director

32



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013 .
(Amount in %)

Particulars Note No. Fer the year ended 31.03.2013 For the year ended 31.03,2012
Gross revenue from operations 15 91554377.32 214944316.09
Less: Excise Duty (1332051.85) {1144190.00)
Net revenue frem cperations 90222325.47 213800126.09
Other income 20 545399.32 90641412.74
Total Revenue 90767724.79 304441538.83
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21 27898006.66 17798244.99
Purchases of stock-in-Trade 22 12709551.67 191100763.25
Changes in inventories 23 8504980.93. 39834441.02
Employee benefit expenses 24 3932942.00 3769197.00
Finance cost 25 23645.43 5426613.16
Depreciaticn and amortisaticn expenses 10 4676354.34 4517693.58
Other expenses 26 27579760.29 33372615.64,
Total expenses 85325241.33 295819568.64
Profit before Tax 5442483.46 8621970.19
Tax expenses ‘ '
Current tax 12953100.00 2165525.00
Deferred tax . 392274.00 2423249.00
MAT credit entitiement 000 (1900677.00)
Tax adjustment for earlier years 0.00 0.00

. 1687374.00 2688097.00
Profit after tax before share of result of Associates
and minority interest 3755109.46 5933873.19
Add/{Less): Minority Interest (1538893.49) 181948.86
Add/{Less): Share in Profit (Loss) of an Associate {270403.97} {235192.29)

{1809297.46) {53243.43)

Profit aftér tax for the year . ' 1945812.00 5880620.76
Carning per equity share 27
Basic and Diluted 0.41 1.24
Signiﬁca'nt accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes to financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For R. S. Agrawal & Associates For and on behalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 100156W

Anuja Dedhia Ramakant Gaggar Suresh Gaggar
Partner Director Director
Membership no. 123589 . b
Place: Mumbai - Place: Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013 Dated: 27th May 2013
5
#
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended 315t March, 2013

{Amount in T)

{A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31.03.2013

For the year ended 31.03.2012

(B)

(c)

Net Profit before Tax and Extraordinary items 5442483.46 8621970.19
Adjustment for

Depreciation 4676354 .34 4517693.58
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 0.00 0.00
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Land (5145000.00) 0.00
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Investments (11609.00) (79870267.09)
Investment Income 0.00

- Interest
- Dividend
Interest Expenses

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Adiutment for

- Trade and other Receivables

- Inventories

- Trade Payables

Cash generated from operations
Advance Tax & TRS

Cash flow before Extraordinary ltems
Extraordinary ltems

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Salef{Purchase) of Investments (Net)
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Loan { given } { Refund

Sale of Fixed Assets

Interest / Other income

Profit / (Loss) on sale of Investments
Dividend received

Proceeds from / Payment for Deposits
MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capitat
Premium on Share Capital

Share Application Money

Miscelianeous Expenditure

Proceeds from Long Term Sorrowings
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings
Increase {decrease) in unsecured loans
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings

Changes in Working Capital Borrowings from Banks

Interest Paid
Dividend paid
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(161548.14)
(383851.18)

__ (24337407}

4173455.41

(183911694.81)
7748790.65
(32643345.53)

(204632794.28)

(2236462.32)

(206869256.60)

0.00

4000000.00

{1942268.28)
0.00
81550C0.00
161548.14
11609.00
383851.18
0.00

15000000.00

187349188.75

0.00

0.00

0.00
{92670.57)

0.00

2000000.00
(7042440.00)

0.00

243374,07

(472500.00)

(206869256.60}

10769740.04

196984952.25

{260641.77)
{983392.75)
5423532.16

{62551105.68)

{1190506.14)
40187913.89
46896795.27

23343094.35
__ (1246582.40)

22096509.86
0.00

(57742416.67)

(3463426.45)
0.00
0.00
26064177
79870267.09
983392.75
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

.00

280000C.00
(71153.84)

0.00

20534140.00
{72500000.00)

0.00
(5423532.16)

(4725060.00)

2

22096509.86

19908458.49

(61205546.00)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVAEENTS
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

885435.69

4218551.06 -

5103986.75

(19900577.65)
24119128.71
4218551.06

Notes to cash flow statement:
1. All figures in brackets are outfiow.

2_Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date

For R.S.AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
{Registration no, 100156W)

Anuja Dedhia
Partner
Membership No. 123589

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

Suresh Gaggar
Director

Place : Mumbali
Dated: 27th May 2013

For and on behalf of the Board

Ramakant Gaggar
Director
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NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS:

1. Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve as a means of
informative disclosure and a guide to better understanding the consolidated positions of the Companies, Recagnising this
purpese, the Company has disclosed only such Policies and Notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly
present the needed disclosures.

2. Principles of Consolidation :
The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Garnet International Limited and its subsidiary Sukartik Clothing Private
Limited. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 21
“Consolidated Financial Statements” and Acceunting Standard 23 “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements” as notified under the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.The Conselidated financial
Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line by line basis by
adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. after fully eliminating Intra
group balances, intra group transactions and unrealized profits or losses.

b} The difference between the costs of investment in the subsidiary and the Company's share of equity at the time of
acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the
case may be.

¢) The difference between the proceeds from the disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its
assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the
profit or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary

d)  Minority interest's share of net profit (loss} of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against
the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

e)  Minority Interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated
balance sheet separate from liahilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders.

i Investment in Associate Companies has been accounted under the equity methed as per Accounting Standard (AS) 23
- "Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”

“As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using the uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company's
separate financial statements

3. Significant accounting policies :

a) CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

The cost incurred for fixed assets, the construction of which is not completed, are included under "capital work-in-
progress” and the same are classified and added to the respective assets on the completion,

b)  VALUATION OF STOCK OF SHARES AND SECURITIES AND INVENTORIES

(i) Shares and securities held as “stock-in-trade” are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is fower and on
FIFQ basis.

{(ii) Valuation of inventories is exclusive of taxes or duties incurred and on FIFO basis except otherwise stated.
{iit}y Raw materials and Work in progress are being valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.
{iv) Stores, spares and tools are being valued at weighted average cost.

{v) Goods in transit, if any, are stated at actual cost up to the date of the Balance Sheet.

(vi} Finished stocks are being valued at direct cost or net realisable values whichever is lower.

¢) REVENUE RECQGNITION

(il Incomes from investments, where appropriate, are taken into revenue in full on declaration or receipt and tax
deducted at spurce thereon is treated as advance tax.

(i) Sale of Goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership which is on the dispatch of
goods.

(iii} Sales are stated net of discount, claims, and shortage. Commission, brokerage and incentives on sales, wherever
applicable, have been separately recognized as an expense,

{iv) Incomes from job charges are recognized as and when the services are rendered,
{v) Interest income ig accounted on accrual basis.

d) PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSES/INCOME
The group follows the practice of making adjustments through "prior period items” in respect of all material transaction
pertaining to the period prior to current accounting period/year.

e) MISCELLANECUS EXPENDITURE
Miscellaneous expenditure, such as preliminary expenditure and share issue expenditure is amortized over a period of
5 years, as the case may be, from the financial year in which it is incurred.

f) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

13

(i Employees’ benefit under defined contribution plan such as contribution to provident fund and employees’
benefits under defined benefit plan for leave encashment are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year
in which the related service provided.

GARNET INTERNATICANL LHIMITED
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4,

{ii) Post employment benefits under defined benefit plan such as gratuity are charged off in the year in which the
employee has rendered services at the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial
valuation technigues. Actuarial gain andfor losses in respect of post employment benefits are charged to profit
and loss account or capitalised in case of new projects are taken up by the company.

g} BORROWING COSTS

The group capitalizes interest and other costs incurred by it in connection with funds borrowed for the acquisition of
fixed assets. Where specific borrowings are identified to a fixed asset or a new unit, the group uses the interest rates
applicable to that specific borrowing as the capitalization rate. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when all the
activities necessary to prepare the fixed assets for their intended use are substantially complete. Other borrowing
costs are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

hy SEGMENT REPORTING

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the group. Segments
have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard - 17, taking into account the organisational structure as well
as the differing risks and returns. The business segment is disclosed as primary segment.

i EXCISE DUTY

(it CENVAT credit available as per the provisions of the Excise Rules on raw material, packing material, etc
purchased, is accounted for by reducing the cost of the respective items.

{iiy Excise duty payable on finished gocds lying at the factory premises at the close of the year is provided in the
books as per the Excise Rules.

(ili) CENVAT credit available as per the provisions of the Excise Rules on capital goods is accounted for by reducing
the cost of capital goods.

j) ° TRANSACTION IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

.=(i) Initial Recrganisation: Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded by applying the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.

(i} Conversion: Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies remaining unsettled at the end of the year, are
restated using the closing rates.

{iiiy Exchange Difference: The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
unsettied monetary items at the rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year,
or reported in the previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which
they arise.

In case the monetary items are covered by the forward exchange contracts, the difference bétween the yearend
exchange rate and the exchange rate at the date of the inception of the forward exchange contract is recognised
as exchange difference.

{(iv) Forward Exchange Contracts: In case of transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, which are not
intended for trading or speculation purposes, the premium/discount represented by difference between the
exchange rate at the date of the inception of the forward exchange contract and forward rate specified in the
contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract.,

Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss account in the year in
which the exchange rate changes.

Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognised as income or as
expense for the year. .

In case of transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, which are intended for trading or speculation
purposes, the premium/discount is ignored and at each balance sheet date, the value of the contract is marked to
its market value and gain/loss on the contract is recognised.

{v} Non-menetary foreign currency items such as investments are carried at cost.

k) IMPAIRMENT LOSS
impairment loss is provided to the extent the carrying amount(s) of assets exceed their recoverahle amount(s),
Recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flow expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its
useful life. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of the asset in an arm length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal.

Other significant accountinggpolicies : s
These are set out under "Significant Accounting Paolicies” as given in the Company’s separate financial statements.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

36



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes on Consclidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

(Amount in )
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Note 2: Share capitat
Numbers Amount(T} Numbers Amount(3)
Authorised:
Equity Shares of ¥10/- each 7500000 75000000.00 7500000 75000000.00
Total 75000000.00 75000000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up :
Equity Shares of T10/- each fully paid 6225000 62250000.00 4725000 4725000000
Total 62250000.00 47250200.00
2.a Reconciliation of number of eguity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :-
Particulars Numbers Amount (T) Numbers Amount &)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 4725000 47250000.00 4725000 47250000.00
Issued during the year 1500000 15000000.00 - -
Bought back during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 6225000 ©2250000.00 4725000 47250000.00

During the year the Company has, on preferential basis, alloted 1500000 equity share of € 10/ at a premium of T 125/ per share as per SEB)
" Guidelines. Expenses relating to it has been reduced from the Securities Premium.

2.c The equity shares of the Company have rights and restrictions as prescribed under law, I particular the Companies Act, 1956.

2.d Shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capital at the end of the year:

Name of shareholders Numbers % of Holding Numbers % of Holding
Shri Ramakant Gaggar Q79079 1573 908743 19.23
Evergreen Infotech & Datacom Private limited 300778 8.04 500778 10.60
Smt. Indra Gaggar b 454921 7.31 458921 9.71
Shri Suresh Gaggar 464206 7.46 487206 1031
Navkar Corporation Limited . 1500000 24.10 - -

Nota 3: Reserves and surplus

Securities prefmiurm

Balance af the beginning of the year : 139000000.00 139000000.00
Add: Received during the year on issue of shares - 187500060.00 0.00
326500000.00 139000000.00
Less : Share issue expenses 150811,25 326349188.75 0.00  133000000.00
Capital Reserve on consolidation
At the beginning of the year and at the end of year A4948062.98 4943062.98
Surplus in Statement of Profit and loss :
Balance at the beginning of the year 30535430.13 25203951.37
Add {less): Profit (foss) after tax for the year 1945812.00 5880629.76
Less:
Proposed dividend for the year [Dividend per share T NIL {(P.Y. ¥ 0.00 472500.00
Provisian for tax on proposed dividend for the year 0.00 76651.00
3248124214 30335430.13
Total T 36377849387 T 17448340311
Note 4: Leng term borrowings
Secured Lgan
Vehicle loan from HDFC bank 9575.44 115175.59
Total 9575.44 116175.59
{a) Nature of security : Hypothecation of the vehicle financed by the bank.
{b) Terms of Repayment: : 35 EMis commencing from June 2011 of T 9688/ each [outstanding EMI'S 13).

{c) Current maturities of EMIs has been grouped under "Other Curent Liabilities" refer note 8.
Note 5: Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities an account of ;

Depreciztion 2217460.00 1863020.00
Defarred Tax Assets on account of :
Business Losses = 0.00 3968200
Gratuity 19699.00 17861.00
Total 2197761.00 1805487.00
" * Deferred tax assets arising on losses has not been recognized in view of uncertainty in gererating the profit in the future.

Note &: Short term borrowings

Unsecured Loans:
Loans repayable on demand from:

Associate Company (refer note 29) 0.00 8350000.00
Others Companies 2 13726700.00 12419140.00
13726700.00 20769140.00

Tatal 1372670

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in 7}
Particuiars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Mote 7: Trade payables
Micro and small enterprises* 0.00 0.00
Others 9146717.70 10305579.51
Total Di46717.70 10305579.51

* As per the information available with the Company in response to the enquiries from all existing suppliers with whom Company deals, none of the
suppliers are registered as micro and small enterprises under “The Micre, 5mall and Mediurm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as at 31st March

e 8: Other current liabilitias

Current maturities of a long-term debt 106600.15 92670.57
Unpaid dividends* 162816.40 149272.0Q
Overdrawn Bank balance 0.00 846558.93
Creditors for capital expenditure 32423681 149715.00
Payables to Employees 824775.00 601937.00
Advance from Customers 98563.00 161542.00
Statutory liabifities 297981.00 254928.00
Accrued axpenses 469425.00 374274.00
Other payables $420000.00 37550000.00

Totai 8704397.36 40180897.50

* There is no outstanding dues to be paid to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

& 9: Short term provisions

Provision for employees benefits (Gratuity) {refer note 32) 63750.00 57804.00
Provision for taxation (net of taxes paid} €48737.30 1572600.75
Provision for proposed dividend 0.00 472500.00
Provision for tax on proposed dividend 0.00 76651.00

Total 712487.30 2179564.75

Note 11: Non-current investments

Other than trade (at cost): Numbers Amount(X} Numbers Amount{)
Quoted: Investments in fully paid eguity instruments:
Ambitious Plastomac Company Limited having face value of ¥ 10, 206400.00 6147550.00 206400 6147550.00
Suryajyoti Spinning Mills Limited having face value of ¥ 10/-# 75000.00 4053828.95 75000 4053828.95
wakrangee Software Limited having face value of ¥ 104 720.00 5952.39 720 5952.39

Unguoted: Investments in fully paid equity instruments:
a) investment in an Associate Company: {refer note 30}

Bhuta Investment Private Limited having face value of T100/ $60000.00 7461786.35 60000 7732190.32
b} investment in cther Companies:
T.N.R Infrastructures Limited having face value of I10/- @ 1435000.00  107625000.00 1435000  107625000.00
Reliable Smart City Private Limited having face value of 10/ 0.00 0.00 400000 4000000.00
Investments in Government securities
Natipnal Saving Certficates* 230.00 23000.00 230 23000.00
Other non-currant investment
Investmet in Sitver bar 16.445Kg 304783.00 16.445Kg 304783.00
Total 125621900.6% 129892304.60
Particulars Book value (I} Market value ) Book value (]}  Market value (T)=*
Aggregate value of:
Quoted investments 10207331.34 1129448.00 10207331.34 2037925.80
Unquoted investments 115086786 35 N.A, 119357190.32 N.A.

{*) stands in the name of one of the directors

*+ The market value of quoted investments is based on the Bombay Stock Exchange quotations as on 31.03.2012 or nearest traded date,
wherever available. The market value of shares, for which the quotatiens of the Bombay Stock Exchange were not avallable, has been
considered as nil.

# 75000 equity shares of Suryajyoti Spinning Mills Limited, were given as security to VSB Investment Private Limited, towards margin for
trading in shares and securities.

@Particulars of investment in Associate company:

Name of the Associate : Bhuta Investment Private limited
Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Mo.of Equity Shares held : 60000 60000
% of holding - 32.43% 32.43%
QOriginal cost of Investment : 12600000.00 12000000.00
Amount of Goodwill in original cost ; 3380432.65 338043265
Share in accumulated Profit/ (Loss) f Reserves : {B87377.03) {652184.74)
Share in current year Profit/(Loss) : (270403.97} {235192.29)
Carrying amount of Investment : 7461786.35 7732190.32
Note 12: Long term !0ans and advances
#
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 360250.00 360250.00
Advance tax {net of provisicn for tax) 0.00 59161 13
Unsecured, considered doubtiuf
Advance for capital goods . 47940.00 87540.00

Share Application money
‘To a company in which two directors of the company are

members and directors 575000.00 S75000.00
Others 0.00 2000000.00
575Q0¢.00 2575000,00
Intercorporate Loans 202500000.00 0.00
Total 203523190.00 3082351.13

Note 13: Other non current assets

Minimum aiternate tax credit entitierment 13510073.00 13826162.00

Total 13510073.00 13826163.00

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March 2013

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012
Note 14: Inventories
Raw Materials 3620515.30 304220915
Work in progress 0.00 1508250.00
Finlshed goods 3209720.00 60985.97
Steck-in trade:
Shares and securities 17806062.19 2804444206
Fabrics 266440.61 179220.67
18072502.80 28223662.73
Consumables 402046.04 21846694
Total 25304784.13

Details of Raw Materials:
yarn
Dyes & Cemicals

Details of work in progress:
Garments

Datails of Finished goods:
Garments

Details of Stock-in trade:
Shares and securities { Face value of ¥ 10/- each):

343213 (P.Y 538913) equity shares of Gini Silk Mills Lid
1200(P.Y 1200 equity shares of jayavant Products Limited

75( P.Y Nil} equity shares of |.Kumar Infra Project Lic

573733 (P.Y 616733 ) equity shares of Pankaj Polymers Limited (PPOL)
Nil (P.¥ 271522) equity shares of Pankaj Polypack Limited {PPL)*
18(P.Y 18) equity shares of Reliable Ventures india Limited

Fabric

1784300.78
1836214.52

~ 362051530

0.00

3205720.00

11034297.95

41840.00
11205.61
6718413.43
0.00

205.20

266440.61

3303357498

1939265.13
1052944.01

3042209.15.

1508250.00

60585.97

21529574.35
28560,00
11205.61

4175282.41,
.00
268.02

179220.67

* alloted as-per scheme of demerger of PPOL in the ratio of 12:5, accordingly, the carrying cost of PPL shares has been adjusted.

Nate 15: Tfade receivables

Unsecured, considered good
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payments
Other debts
Due from a company in which a director of the company is
meamber and directar
Due from a director
Others

0.00
531000.00

Total
Note 16: Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with banks
In Current accounts
Unpaid dividends*
Cash in hand

Qther bank balances:
Fixed deposits with banks with maturity period more than 3 months
but upto 12 months.
Fixed deposits with banks with maturity period more than 12
months.
Less: Fixed deposits with banks with maturity peried more than 12
months transferred to "Other Non Current Assets”, refer nota 13)

Total
* Earmarked against the corresponding proyision.

Nate 17: Short term loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good

L L&ans and advances to related parties {refer note 29)
Office Deposits to Associate company
Loan to Associate company
Intercorporate loans
Te the companies in which director(s) is{are} member{s} and
director{s}
Others

5250000.00
»

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Advance to employees
Vat credit receivable

Duty Drawback receivable
Cther receivables

Taotal
Note 18: Other current assets
Interest accrued on fixed depaosits
Interest Accrued on National saving certificate

Interest Accruad on security deposit
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

13889044.65

2267973713

1730572,40

14420044.65

1615061705,

1069934.11
162816.40
436474.62

3750851.62

0.00

10000000.00
2975000.00

2792973113
105836.00-
215213 .00

13000.00
906137.00
63121.00
500000.00

42708044.13

4422730
2376.00
35505.00
316090.00

39816830

419090.00

342194.75
0.00 b

10,068,656.65

10410851.40

10829941 40

3266557.98
149272,00 «
541894.45

240826.53
0.00
0.00

4218551.06

300Q0000.00
0.00

13250000

7220475213

35454752.13
11470.00
217163.00
10500.00
1252004 .94
o.00
3422.88

6E958812.95

23886.32
2197.00°

30327.00

0.00

T 5641032
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GARNLET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Consitldated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013

{Amountin ¥)

Particulars

For the year ended 31.03.2013

For the year ended 31.03.2012

Note 19: Revenuge from operations

Sales :
Shares and securities
Garments
Local
Export

Dyes & Chemicals
Sale of Land { refer note 10.1)

Profit {(loss) on sale of Shares transaction - intra-day
Profit (loss) on Shares transactions- F & O

Services:
job work charges
Other Operating revenues
Dividend
Commissicn

Less: Excise duty

Total
Note 20: Other income

Interest
i on fixed deposits
on National saving certificate
on Loans
on security deposits

Net gain on sale of Non-current investments

Expert Incentive
Total

Note 21: Cost of materials consumed

Opening stecks:
Raw material
Yarn
Stock in Trade
Dyes & Cemicals

Add . Cost of purchases
Raw materials
Yarn
Stock in Trade
Dyes & Cemicals

Less: Closing stock
Raw material
Yarn
Stock in Trade
Dyes & Cemicals

Total

imparted and Indigenous Raw materials consumed:
imported ®
Indigencus

Note 22: Purchases of stock-in-Trade

Fabric
Dyes & Chemicals
Shares and securities

36094243.50
829029,60

26701950

5142440.00

318767.32,

2376.00
121685.00
39450.00

1989265.13
0.00

1052944.01,

5399894.34
0.00

23076418.47

16886041.74

36923273.10

23150.40
8155000.00

{11609,00)
(5204333.50)

29371395.08.

50250000.00

5409459.50

1332051.85

91554377.32

483278.32
0.00

63121.00

54539332

3042209.14

14640431.47.

28476312,81 |

25552244 20
0.00

983392.75

715268.77
2197.00
149479.00
33697.00

2825813.86
0.00

552516.31 .

2821692.49
0.0

210938597.73

25552244.20

C.00
0.00

(10510503 .58)
{84541731.89)
22271317.18

51233392.75

1144190.00

214944316.09

260641.77.
90386770.97

0.00

50641412.74

3378330.17

17462123.96

- Cost of land transferred from fixed asset (refer note 10.1)

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

1784300.78 198926513
0.00 0.00
1836214.52 1052944 01
362051530 3042209.14
27898006.65. 17798244.99
% of total % of total
Comsumption in ¥ consumption Comsumption in ¥ consumption
0.00 0.00% 613100.49 28.15%
28898006.66 103.58% 17185144.50 71.85%
28898006.66 103.58% 177568244.99 100.00%
§57885.00 305640.00
23538.00 0.00
B8818128.67- 190795123.25
3010000.00 , 0.00
12709551.67 191100763.25




GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Consildated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013

{Amount in ¥}

Farticulars

For the year ended 31.03.2013

For the year ended 31.03.2012

Note 23: Changes in inventories

Opening stocks:
Finished goods
Stock in Trade :
Shares and Securities
Fabrics

Work in progress

Less:Closing stocks:
Finished goods
Stock in Trade :
Shares and Securities
Fabrics

Work in progress

Add/(Less): Variation in excise duty on cpening and
closing stock of finished goods

Total
Note 24: Employee benefit expenses

Saiarie-s and Wages
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total
-~ Note 25: Finance cost

interest on loan
Interest on late payment of taxes
Other borrowing cost

Tetal

Note 26: Other expenses
Manufacturing Expenses

Job Charges
Power and Fuel
Stentering Charges
Tubler & Compaction Exp.
Dyeing Charges
Packing Expenses
Fabrication Charges
Husk and Ash Lifting Charges
Stores and Spares Consumed*
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance{Machinery)
Compaction Charges
Shortage Exp.

Administration and other expenses
Brokerage and Commission
Communication Expenses
Demat charges
Advertisement and publicity
Securities Transaction Tax

L Share Trading Expenses
Legal and Professional Charges
Auditers' remuneration (refer note 28)
Insurance
General expenses
Prior Period Exp. #
Donation
Bank Commission / Charges
Membership and Subscription
Bad debts - -
Miscellaneous Expenses
Printing and Stationery
Rates and taxes
Repairs & Maintenance
Transportation Charges
Travelling and Conveyance

“Net foreign exchange loss{gain)

Total

28044442.06
179220.67

7291281.0C
6288797.7%
0.00
35899.00
218917.78
35852.00
56821.00
113113.00
9490695.20
163464.00
743106.81
75756.00
1094.00

26901.00
210374.36
4588 .82
170708.00

5612272

218778.83
200108.08
402518.00
633.00
61891.19
1500.00
7000.00
B736.86
31085.00
134689.42
564719.48
111406.00
37350.00
156323.00
45640.00
613073.26

* All stores and spares consumed are indigenous in nature.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED

60985.97
69439972,75
93000.00
28223662.73
1508250.00
3209720.00
17806062.12
266440,61
0.00
5694,97
8504%80.93
3271501.00
382285.00
279156.00
393294200
23585.43
60.00
0.00
23645.43
5321107.60
4823313.53
216315.00.
96146.00.
22349759
656903.55
192177.00
79800.00
6758446,30
149436.00
436969.96 .
46827.00
5234.00
24514800.58
396116.00
35923298
145176.30
113713.00.
1691804.00
8612485.38
215018.00
413675.00
917.00
60650.07.
1086.,00
646100.00
761.80
8222400
0.00
411608.06
165164.00
41721.00
271712.00
168453.15.
560074.80
3064147.02
812.69

27579760.29

o

97805.22

69532972.75
0.00

60985.97

28044442.06
179220.67

1508250.00

3438.24

___39834441.02_

2934958.00
566064.00
26817500

3769197.00

5229757.16
193775,00
3081.00

5426613.16

19008173.53

1435769260
674951

3337261564



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Consildated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013
{Amount in %)

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2013 For the year ended 31.03.2012

Note 27 : Earning per equity share

Unit

Net profit {loss) after tax T 1945812.00 5880629.76
Weighted average number of shares used in

computing basic earnings per share Numbers 4749658 4725000
Face value of equity shares z ‘10 10
Basic and diiuted earnings per share T Q.41 1.24

Note 28: Payment to Auditors {including service tax)

Statutory audit under the Companies Act 1956 241574.00 237969.00
Tax Audit under the Income Tax Act 1961 56180.0C 55561.00
Taxation matters 19663.00 19508.50
Certifications 32002.00 30334.50
Out of pocket expenses 3417.00 9637.00
Dthers 49682.00 60665.00

402518.00 : 413675.00

Note 29 : Related party disclosures

Related party disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) -18 “Related Party Disclosures”, notified by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006(as amended) are given below:
1) Names of related parties and description of relationships
Associate Company
Bhuta Investment Private Limited
. I} Transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at year end with the related parties are as follows:

Particulars Volume of Transactions Balances as on
2012-13 2011-12 31.03.2013 31.03.2012
Current liabililties
Short term borrowings
Unsecured Loans:
Bhuta Investment Private Limited 8800000.00 58100000.00 c.00 8350000.00

Non current assets
Non-current investments
Unguoted: Investments in fully paid equity instruments:
Bhuta Investment Private Limited G.00 0.00 12000000.00 12000000.00

Current assets
Short term {oans and advances
Office Deposit .
Bhuta Investment Private Limited 20000000.00 0.00 10000000.00 30000000.00

Sub note: Related party relationship is identified by the Company and relied upen by the auditors,

Note 30: The associate concern charges the depreciation on fixed assets on Written Down Valug Method, whereas the group charges the
depreciation on fixed assets on Straight Line Method, 3

Note 31 : The management is proposing to make applications for condonation for following non-compliances to the appropriate authorities:
(i} Loans & Advances, involving an amount of Z 82,25,000/-.(year end outstanding ¥ 82,25,000/-) given by the company during the year,
are in contravention of provisions of Section 295 of the Act;

(if) Contracts of purchase and sale of shares and securities, amounting to ¥ 3,67.487.20/- and T 27,15,584.94/- respectively entered into
by the company at arm iength prices during the year, are in contravention of provisions of section 297 of the Act;

Note 32 :
{a) In case of Subsidiary Company: No provisicn has been made for accrued liability in respect of gratuity payable to employees, as the
company Is in the process of taking actuariai valuation certificate for present value of future liabilities.
{b} The company has provided gratuity payabfe to its emplayees at full value withcut ascertaining the present value of future payment

of gratuity as the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is, in view of number of employees, not applicable to the company. The company
has recegnised as an expense, the short term benefits to its employees such as bonus, leave encashment etc.

Note 33: Contingent liabilities {to the extent not provided for) Amount(T)
v Ag at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03,2012
Undertakings given by the subsidiary company under EPCG Scheme, pending fulfillment of
a. expert obligaticn 1143839.00 1143839.00

The disputed demand outstanding fram the Assessment year 2005-06 to 2011-12 is T 4,66,59,674/-. Based on the decisions of the
Appellate authorities and the interpretations of other reievant provisions , the Company has been legally advised that the demand is
k. likely to be either deleted ot substantially reduced and accordingly ne provision has been made,

3

Note 34 : The Company has taken office premises on leave and license basis. The same is not non-cancellable and for a period of 11 months
and renewable at the mutual consent at mutually agreeable tarms. The Company has given refundzable interest free security deposits in
accordance with agreed terms. No rentals are pavable on such lease

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED
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GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Consildated Statement of Profit 2nd Loss for the year ended 31st March 2013

fAmount in ¥)
For the year ended 31.03.2012

Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2013

Note 35: C. I, F, value of imports; (Amount in T}
For the year ended
2012-2013 2011-2012
Raw Materials 0.00 613100.03
Capitai goods:
Seamless Knitting Machine 108215.00 0.00
Nate 36: Earnings in Foreign Exchange; {Amount in ¥)
For the year ended
2012-2013 2011-2012
FOB value of Exports * B290246.6 0
* based on shipping bill for which 8RCs are pending . ’
Note 37: Detail of Subsidiary and Associate Company considered in the Consclidated Financial Statements are ;
a) Subsidiary Company
Sukartik Clothing Private Limited (“the subsidiary”)
Country of incorporation: India
Proportion of ownership interest as at 31% March 2013 is 50.21% {
Financial statement is drawn up to 315 March 2013

b) Associate Company

Bhuta Investment Private Limited {"the associate”)
~  Country of incorporation - tndia

Percentage of ownership interest as at 31% March 2013 is 32,43% (PY 32.43%)
Financial statement is drawn up to 31° March 2013,

P.Y. 50.21%),

Note 38: Figures for the previous year have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reciassified wherever necessary.

GARNET INTERNATIOANL LIMITED



GARNET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Note 39 : Segment information

Primary segment Disclosure - Business segment

Particulars

Shares and Securities

Textile

Consolidated Total

2012-2013

2011-2012

2012-2013

2011-2012

2012-2013

2011-2012

(i}

(i)

(i}

Segment Revenue
Operating incgme
Less: Inter-segment revenue
Net revenue from operations

Result
Segrnent Results
Less: Unallocated corpeorate expenses
Operating Profit
Less: Interest expense (Net)
Profit before Tax
Provision for Taxation (Met)
Currrent Tax
MAT Credit Entitlerment
Deferred Tax
Adjustment for earfiar years

Profit for the year before Minority interests

Other'Information

Segment Assets
Unzllocated Common Assets
Total Assets

25234558.74
0.00

257501525.68
0.00

64987766.73
0.00

46679371.38
0.co

90222325.47
.00

304180897.06
Q.00

25234558.74

555641.19

41168102709

2537301525.68

1170569072

255390406.32

64887766.73

‘4428209 .38

73314316.22

46679371.38

2082250.86

64241522.07

90222325.47

304180897.06

4483850.57 13787941.58
0.00 0.00
4983850.57 13787941.58
(458632.89) 5165971.39
5442483.46 B8621970.19
1295100.00 2165525.00
t 0.00 {1900677.00)
382274.00 2423249.00
0.00 0.00
1687374.00 2688097.00
3755109.46 5933873.19

484995343.31
0.00

319631928.39
0.00

48499534331

319631928.39

Segment Liabilities 20546381.05 63915454.51 11622935.02 8063203.09 321649316.07 71978747.60
Unallocated Common Liabilities 0.00 0.00
Total kidbilities 32169316.07 71978747.60
Capital Expenditure 7050.00 8900.00 1935218.28 3315312.45 1942268.28 3324212.45
Depreciation and Amortisation 572916.17 57215431 4103438.18 3945539.28 4676354.35 4517693.58
Non-cash expenses other than depreciatio 0.00 0.00 .00 .00 0.00 0.00
Secondary Segment Disclesure - Geographical segment
Domestic Overseas Total
2012-2013 2011-2012 2012-2013 2011-2012 2012-2013 | 2011-2012
Revenue from Customers 90222325.47  304180897.06 0.00 0.00 00222325.47 304180897.00

Foot nates:

1

™)

w

Business Segment :

The group has considered business segments as the primary segment for disclosure.
The segments have been identified taking into account the organisational structure as well as the differing risks and retumns of these segments.
Shares and Securities Segrment comprises of income from share trading, intra-day transaction, Investments ang dividend.
Textile Segment comprises of sales of garments and dyeing dene on job work basis.

Secondary Segment :

The geographical segments are considered for disclosure as secondary segment
Domestic segment includes sales to customers located in India and income accrued in India
Overseas segment includes sales to customers located outside India and income derived from outside India

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segment and amounts allocated on a reasonable

basis.

As per our attached report of aven date

For R.S.AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
(Registraticn nc. 100156W) £

Anuja Dedhia
Partner
Membership No. 123589

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 27th May 2013
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For and ¢n behalf of the Board

Suresh Gaggar
Director

Place : Mumbai

Dated: 27th May 2013

3

Ramakant Gaggar
Director
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